
Above: Note the periscope of the drift meter protruding through the Perspex panel in the middle 
of the glazed nose (arrowed). The paint is peeling off as usual. On the Liberator II there were two 
exhausts from each engine protruding always on the outboard side of the cowling.

Top right: Looking aft in the fuselage of a Liberator II, single Brownings are in FN55 mounts (A). 
There is ball mount in the glazed entrance door for another gun (B). Twin guns on the scarf ring 
mount are visible in the tail (C).

Right: The same gunner as at the starboard waist position on previous photo, this time posing 
with the twin American Browning .50 guns on the scarf ring mount in the tail. The guns are 
installed in Bell E-5 adapters. This was installed in the USA, where this aircraft was retained after 
Pearl Harbor. There are muzzle compensators on the barrels, to help the gunner keep the guns’ 
elevation steady when firing.

LIBERATOR III 
BOMBER

The Liberator III was the British designation for the Consolidated B-24D (manufactured in San Diego and 
in Fort Worth). The B.III, GR.III and GR.V designations were introduced in early February 1943. Until this 
time all B-24Ds in the UK were Liberator IIIs. They had Pratt & Whitney R-1830-43 (later -65) Twin Wasp 
engines with three-blade Hamilton Standard Hydromatic propellers of 11ft 7in diameter.

The first B.III, FK239, was allocated to 160 Squadron in October 1942. A total of 93 were delivered with 
serials: FK239 – FK240 (2), FL908 – FL995 (13) and BZ748 – BZ959 (78).

BZ748 (ex-42-40467) at Dorval, 1943. Although one of the early Liberator III 
bombers and fully armed, it was used for training and transport by 45 Group and 
never reached a bombing unit. (A) is one of a possible three Browning .50 guns 
in the glazed nose. (B) is the opening for the Perspex astrodome covered by an 
Alclad sheet. (C) is the Martin A-3C mid-upper with two Browning .50s.  
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LIBERATOR III, BZ762 (EX-USAAF ‘LO’), 111 (C) OTU, BAHAMAS, 1944

A rare colour photo of BZ762 ‘LO’ of 111 (C) OTU, in the Bahamas. Note the fuselage roundel overlaps 
the wind deflector. The IFF Mk.II aerial can be seen running from an insulator (arrowed) over the waist 
gun post. In front of the aircraft are Czechoslovak airmen with their instructor F/O Jan Roman Irving 
(holding a headset).

Left: BZ748, Trinidad, October 1943. The original 
Consolidated A-6A tail turret can be seen with two .50 
Brownings still wrapped for delivery. The two tunnel gun 
scanning windows are visible at (A). The wire of the IFF 
Mk.II set is running from the insulator (B) to the outer end 
of horizontal stabilizer.

Above: BZ762 was delivered to 111(C) OTU, Bahamas, on 25 May 1943. Interesting 
features include (C) Browning M2 .50 gun, (D) an empty K-4 mount. (E) masts with 
D-1 Pitot tubes. (E) A-3C mid-upper turret. (F) early tail bumper (rubber shock strut) 
extended. All rubber de-icer boots have been removed. 

MODELLER’S  NOTES

Aircraft:
Consolidated San Diego plant built
No radar installed
Martin A-3C mid-upper turret
Single .50 tunnel gun 
Consolidated A-6A tail turret with two asymmetrically mounted Browning 
0.50 machine guns 
Short trim tabs on rudders

Colours:
Upper and side surfaces in Dark Olive Drab No. 41, lower surfaces in 
Neutral Grey No.43 
Straight dividing line between side and lower surfaces
Propeller domes were painted black
National markings according to the AMO A.664 issued in July 1942
Letters ‘LO’ painted in white
Serial number painted in black

Discussion points:
Rubber de-icer boots were removed, areas adjacent to Olive Drab were 
painted in black, areas adjacent to Neutral Grey were left unpainted
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Top: BZ839 (ex-42-63862) arrived to India in August 1943 and was allotted to 159 Squadron. Roundels were modified to the order issued by 
Air Headquarters, India, on 4 July 1943, when the red centre was omitted. The aircraft had an A-3C mid-upper turret Boulton Paul Type E tail 
turret. The fire extinguisher cover (arrowed) was opened when starting the engines.

Above: BZ839 at Salbani, again Disney’s Dumbo inspired the nose art, painted by Bill Kirkness DFM, a Wop/Ag. 

Right: Close up detail of the K-4 ball mount (A) and the nose mounted Browning .50 (B) with a simple sight, just a gun post Army Type A-5. 
It has nine bomb symbols (seven outlined in light paint and two dark bombs on the right) which is strange because BZ839 flew only one 
sortie with 159 Squadron (on the night of 2/3 October 1943) and then went to 1584 HCU, then 1673 HCU as a training aircraft.

Main: BZ906 (ex-42-63947) arrived at Karachi on 8 September 1943 and was allotted to 159 
Squadron. Again, the artwork was painted by Bill Kirkness DFM, who often flew in this crew. 
(A) ‘Algy’ was a dapper gent with a cape, cane, white gloves, monocle, and top hat. He was 
inspired by Algernon (Algy) Moncrieff, Oscar Wilde’s character. Instead of a bomb symbol 
for each sortie, a playing card was added, ten cards (B) are below the cockpit. (C) is the 
driftmeter B-3 periscope tube.  Note the modified roundels with the red centre omitted and 
wider blue band.

Far left: Close up view of the Algy nose art.

Left: The rather obsolete CSBS Mk.IX bomb sight was replaced by the gyroscopic bomb 
sight Mk.XIV. This is the head of the bomb sight, the computer itself was usually attached to 
the left side wall in the bombardier’s compartment.
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Below: The first Liberator B. III, FK239 (ex-41-11713), landing at Prestwick after 
its delivery flight on 24 June 1942. It has a single Browning M2 .50 in the nose, 
an A-3C mid-upper turret, FN55 mount in the waist gun doors and a Boulton Paul 
Type E tail turret with four .303 Brownings. Being an early B-24D, there were no 
tunnel gun windows. 

Left: Close up of the gyroscopic bomb sight Mk.XIV in the nose of a B.III. Note 
the (A) windscreen wiper of the triangular bombardier’s window (the only glass 
panel in the nose, all other panels were Perspex). (B) windscreen washer. (C) 
circular hole - for handing paper messages to and from the aircraft.

LIBERATOR VI RAF
The Liberator B.VI was the B-24J model (-CF, -FO and 14 made at San Diego) and 
B-24L-FO model modified to British requirements. Serials BZ960 – BZ998, EV812 – 
EV999, EW100 – EW287, KG823 – KG999, KH100 – KH408, KK229 – KK362, KL352 
– KL689, and KN702 – KN752. BZ960 was the first B. Mk. VI to arrive in the UK on 12 
November 1943; it then continued on to India. 	

The B.VI differed from the B.III in having additional nose and lower ball turrets, additional 
gunners being needed. The original navigator’s position in the nose was relocated to 
flight deck, behind the captain. The B.VI was most numerous Liberator model in the 
RAF, in total 858 were delivered, the majority going to the MAAF and to ACSEA.

Main: B.VI EW157 ‘Z’ (ex-42-99838) of 356 Squadron. The enhanced defensive 
armament consisted of: (A) MPC A-6B nose turret, (B) Martin A-3C mid-upper, 
(C) single Browning M2 .50 gun at each waist window, (D) MPC A-6B tail turret 
and (E) A-13 lower ball turret. A total of ten .50 machine guns. (F) is the marker 
beacon aerial, (G) the IFF aerial, (H) the end of the liaison set trailing aerial, 
and (I) the driftmeter B-3 periscope tube. Note the white Modification Centre 
number 30-186 and the pennant above the fire extinguisher cover. W/Cdr Hugo 
Russell MacDougall Beall flew EW157 as a formation leader on a number of 
raids between 21 December 1944 and 28 January 1945.
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